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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux
Lighting LLP) (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “ financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Financial Statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report for the financial year 2023-24, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
forensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based




uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

e  [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) 1o evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
gtatements,

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit, :

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasunably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Avditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 17, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As reguired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a We have scught and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
“"belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; ’

b in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of thosc books;

The Balance Skeet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows deait with by this report are in agreement with the bocks
of account,

£

¢ In our opinion. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act; - )

¢ On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
‘appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;




g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(a)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 40 on Contingent Liabilities to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the
question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

There weie no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company

- shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like cn behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Basged on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule | 1(e) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and until the date of this report.

Baszed on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned
below, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software:

a. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level
to log any direct data changes for the accounting softwares used for maintaining the books
of account relating to payroll of the accounting software used for maintaining general ledger.



Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1.
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jdin
Partner
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 24098308BKCQBDS553

Date: May 24. 2024
Place: Moida



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Royalux Lighting Private Limited on the financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2024]

To the best of our information and according to the information, explanations, and written representations provided
to us by the Company and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit we

report that:

(i)  In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and intangible
assets.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(i)  (a}

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant
details of right of use assets.

(B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets which were due for physical
verification during the year were verified during the year and no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessec).
are held in the name of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use assets or
Intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for goods in transit and inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion,
the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on
physical verification which have been properly dealt with in the books of account,




(b) The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore sanctioned by banks based on
the security of current assets during the year. The quarterly statements, in respect of the working
capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such statements are
materially in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods.

(ii1) The Company has not provided any guarantee, security or granted any advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or
any other parties during the year. The Company has granted loans to companies and made
investments in companies during the year, in respect of which the requisite information is
as below, The Company has not made any investments in or granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, to firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties.

(a) The Company has provided loan to 1 Company and guarantee to 1 Company. The details
of the same are given below:

Particulars Guarantee Loans
(In Rs. Million) | (In Rs. million)

Aggregate amount during the year (net)

- Subsidiary - 301.60
‘= Others 2 :

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

- Subsidiary - 364.20
| - Others 18.90 -

(b) In our opinion the investments made during the year and the terms and conditions of the
grant of loans during the year are. prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the
Companry. The Company has not provided any guarantees or security or granted any
advances in the nature of loans during the year. The terms and conditions of the guarantees
given in the earlier years are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(¢) in respect of loan granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal and interest are regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loan granted to such company.

{e) The Company has not granted any loan which has fallen due during the year. Further, no
fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans.

(B The Corﬁ pany has not granted any loan, which is repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment,

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied witl: the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and security, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any
transaction covered under section 185,

The Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which have been considered
as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies




(vi)

(vii)

(a)

(b)

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services
tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the
Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred
in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute except for the following:

Gr Period to Forum
Name of Nature of g which the where Remarks, if
Amount (In . :
the statute | dues Rs. millic) amount relates | dispute is any
’ " (AY) pending
Demand Email sent to
raised Tax consultant
Income against awaiting for
Tax Act gal 0.31 2021-2022 Income Tax g
1962 order under reply
- section
143(1)
Ditinitid Appeal filed
raised on dated
Income pu i CIT 29.03.2024
Tax Act s 277 | 20222023 before CIT
order under (Appeals)
1962 : (Appeals),
sy awaiting for
. order.
Demand Rectiﬁcati:on
siiunl under section
Income - 154 has been
Tax Act Og s 0.08 2023-2024 Income Tax | filed on dated
1962 o= 14.05.2024,
seetion awaiting for
Ls3(D) order.
Appeal filed
on 03.07.2023
Commissio | and pending
The IGST on ner for order
Customs Sy 2.56 2024-2025 (Appeals), | before
Act, 1962 o Customs, commissioner
New Delhi | (appeals),
customs, New
Delhi




(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(1)

(a)

(b)

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations
received from banks and other lenders and written representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any eniity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary. There are no associates or joint
ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary. There are-no associates
or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial pub-lic offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)Xa) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or ootionally)
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our
audit. )

No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit aad Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

According to the infortnation and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.



(xii)

(xiu)

{xiv)

(xv}

(xvi)  (a)

(b}

(c)

(xvii}

(xviii)

(xix)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 20114 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further. according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have
an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act and consequently, does not have an
internal audit system. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBIL. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company. the Group (as defined in Core Investment ‘Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

A On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) According o the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount towards
Cnrpnmte Socml re:.ponmbl lity (CSR) on othur than nngomg p[‘DjECtS: 1equlrmg a trausfer oa




to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

(b) The Company has not underiaken any ongoing projects in relation to its CSR activities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For BGJC & Associates LIP
Chartered Accouniants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056
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Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 24098308BKCOBDS553
Date: May 24. 2024 '

Place: Noida
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Repori on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of even date te the members of Royalux Lighting Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Royalux Lighting Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
iaternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Owver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act 10 the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepied accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a materizl effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Gompany has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internai control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAL

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Praunav Jain

Partner . ,
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 24098308BKCQBDS5553

Date: Mey 24, 2024
Place: Noida



Royalux Lighting Private Limited

{Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)

{CIN: L3 T906DL2022PTCI95429)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

{All amounts are in INR Milhon, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note  Asat March  Asat March
Na. 31, 2024 31,2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 200,53 55.75
Capital work m progress 4 406 -
Right of use assels 5 §0.98 160
Other Intangible usscts [ 0.75 005
Fimancial Asscls
1) Investments 7 13531 .
i) Loans 8 364.20 -
iti) Other financials assets u 6,01 1.73
Deferred tax assets {net) 10 595 3103
Non current tax assels (net) 11 18.90 1.03
Other non current assels 12 3027 17,77
Total Non current assets 856.90 §0.96
C'urrent assets
Inventorics 13 611.77 35127
Financial assels
1) Trade reccivables 14 24391 23273
i) Cash and cash equivalents 13 5.59 15.62
i) Bank balances other than (1) above 16 .88 1.33
iv) Other lnancial assels 17 689 0.22
Uither current assels I8 1863 10.30
Total current assels 887.67 611.47
TOTAL ASSETS 1,744.63 692,43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equiry
Fquity share capital 19 b9 41 R245
Shares Pending issuance 30 65.97 -
Other equity 20 861,09 24340
TOTAL EQUITY 1.026.47 32585
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial habilities;
1) Borrowings 21 375.18 836
i) Lease habilities 22 Ta07 111
Provisions 23 98 390
Total Non current liabilities 45323 13.37

z
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Current Liabilities
Financials habilhities

i Bnrrm'yings

24 107.73 21549
1w} Lease habilities 25 19.65 (153
1) Trade payables 26
- Total outsianding dues of micro and small enterprises 1587 63.04
- Totl oustanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 68.04 3
w} Other fmancial liabilites 27 31 48 12.66
Cither current Labilities 28 1742 2077
Provisions 29 1.86 0.34
Current tax habilities (net) i 2.89 927
Taotal current linbilities 264.94 353.20
TOTAL LIABILITIES TIR16 366.57
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,744.63 649243
The accompanying notes are an micgral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date,
For BGIC & Associates LLP If of the Board of T
Chartered Accountants I iitigg Private Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 003304N/NS00056 \
) Sanjeet Singh
Direclor Director
Pranav Jain - DIN: 00118729 DIN: (008353656

Partner

Membership No. 098308 - -
Sanjay Singh

Chief Fmancial Officer

Place: MNowda
Date: Moy 24, 2024
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Rovalux Lighting Private Limited

{(Farmerly Royalos Lighting LLP)

(CINUS 1206 DL2022PTCI95429)

Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2024
(ANl amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars Note Year ended  Period from
No. March 31, March 23,
2024 2022 to March
31,2023
Income
Revenue from operations 3 1.953.55 1.324.97
Other lncome j2 2894 644
Total Income 1,982.49 1.331.41
Expenses
Cost of material consumed i 101916 78818
Change n mventories of fimshed goods and work-in-progress 34 (49.04) {15.98)
Emplovee benefits expense 35 231.62 O98.24
Finanee Costs 36 55535 2780
Deprecmuion and amortisation expense 37 5991 18.69
Other expenses 38 209.86 84.10
Total Expenses 1,527.05 LO01.03
Profit before tax 455.43 330.38
Tax expense
() Current ax 121.37 8732
b} Defierred tax 48 (1.63) {0.48)
(¢} Related to carber year / penod {3.18) =
Total Tax expense 116.56 §6.54
Profit after tax 338.87 243.54
Other comprehensive income
lItems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurement of post employment benelit obligations 136 {014y
{b) Income tax relating o items that will not be reclassified W profit and loss 10.34) 0.05
Other comprehensive income for the year/period, net of tax 102 {0.14)
Total comprehensive income for the year/period 339.89 243.40
Earnings per equity share
I Nominal value of share ¥ 10 cach (Previous period ¥ 10 cach) 19
(i) Basic (Rs.) 36353 2454
(b)) Dhluted (Rs.) 36 33 2954
The accompanying notes are an iegral part of ihese fimancial statements,
As per our report of even date
For BGI & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Direetors of
Chartered Accountants Royalux Lighting Private Limi
Firm's Registration No.: 003304N/N500056 Q \
Q Hardedh Singh Sanjeet Singh
ooy < Directar Director
Pranav .Jain DIN: 00118729 DIN: DO0B353656
Partner
Membership No. 098308 & 1:___*\,_1__
Sanjay Singh
Plaee: Maida Chief Finaneial Officer

Date: ©May 24, 2024
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounis are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 =
Issue of shares during the period 8245
Balanee as at March 31, 2023 B145
Issue of shares during the year 16,90
Balance as at March 31, 2024 99.41

B, Oiher equity

Particulars General Securities Other Capital Retained Total
Reserve Premium Comprehensive Reserve Earnings
Income

Remeasurement of
Defined Benefit

Plans

Balance as at April 01,2022 - - = = 5 =
Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP - - - . - -
Profit for the period - - - - 243.54 243,54
Remensurement Gam / (Loss) on defined - - {0.14) - & (0.14)
benetit plans, net of mcome wx
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - - (0.14) - 243.54 243.40
Addition from merger 4.53 - 1.30 - 29,45 21528
Cancellation of Fine Technologics (Indiaj - - - (2.00) (0 40) (2400
Private Limited shires
Capital Reserve on Merger - - - (177 47) - (177.47)
Balance as at April 01, 2023 4.53 - 1.16 (179.47) 452.59 278.81
Profit for the vear - - - - 3887 33R.87
Premium an issue of share - 242,00 - - - 242.00
Cancellation of issue of shares of Fine - - - - 040 0.40
Tiechnolgies (Indi) Private Limited
Remcasurement Gain / (Loss) an defined - - Lol - - 101
benefit plans, net of income tax
Balance us at March 31, 2024 4.53 242.00 217 (179.47) TUL80 B61.09
I'he accompanving notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Royalux Lighting Private Limited
Firm's Registration No.; 003304N/NSO0USG \

1‘0. Hardeep Sing Sanjeet Singh
Pranav Jiin =* Director Director
Partuer DIN: 00118720 DIN: 008353656

Membership No. 098308
b\"-ﬂ‘ gl_"'"_:"_\__-
Sanjay Singh
Chiel Financial Officer Company Sterétary
ACS: 46737

Place: Noida
Date:  May 24, 2014




Reyulux Lighting Private Limited

{Farmerly Rovalux Lighting LLP)

(CIN: U306 DLI0ZZ P TCINS42N

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(ALl armmen = are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particalars Year ended  Period from
March 31, 2024 March 23,

2022 1o March

31,2023

A Cash fow from operanng activities

Prafir belore tax 318 8o 33038
Adjusiments for :
Deprecution aosd pmorisanon expensy ELT] 18 &4
Finance eosis 5535 2652
Provision fir expected credit s {303} 337)
Gain on derecoinition of lease 3 (218
Inferest income (21 ) (33
Loss £ (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equpmen {11k {0 10
Cimm on foreim exchange [0 349} =
Had debts wntten off 120 1 3
Operating profit before working chanpes AM.45 JTL98
Changes in working capitaby:
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets
lnvenioties (12191) (35127}
Trade receivables 05 4% (230 72)
Other Assets 26 69) (2807)
Other financial nssets {247 {1 95)
Adjpstments for increase{decrense) in opernting liabilivics
Trade payables {22 B8} LIS E
Ulther Gnancial liabilities (4 1oy 2514
Other current linhalitics H0ER (R}
Prow ] shestis (714} a3
Cosh generated From{wsed in ) operating aetivities 42040 (100,57}
lneame tax paid {net) L1306 143 {77 B0)
Mer cash generated from / (used in) opemling activities 385,55 (174.46)
B Cashi Aow from iovesiing actividies
Capital expenditure on property, plam end intmogible assels (134 70y (& Ly
Loan given (301 &0y -
Sale proceeds of propeny. plas and equiprient ity s
Equity nvestment in sharos of subsidianes {45 00) -
Movement in fived deposii 045 (133
Inietesy income receryed 16 31 02
et cash isesd in imvesting activities (457.58) (T6.59)
' Cash Mew from Minancing acibyities®
Irnterest pasd (41593 (26 118
Repayment of lease liohilities 123 16} 19 14y
Proceeds from issue of shares - k245
Proceeds from issee of shares on Premium 4200 -
Ml inciease i bong term borrovings from banks 1752 6 19
Met increase in long term bormowwings from Inter comerstes 220 30 5
Net (decrease)increse in shor werm horrowings. from banks (100 43) 147 i
Mot (decrease)inerense in short term bormowings from inter corporis {5400} -
Met cash generaied from fimancing activities 16165 i71.08
Cash acguired from merger LT -
WNet {decrease)inorease in cash and canl equivalients (A8 +C) | FEh iy (KA
Cash and cash equivalents o the begimnimg of the year 1562 -
Cpah ond eash equivalens 0t tha end of the year {rcfier note 151 s40 1563
Nodes io cash Aow stnlement
il Cash and cash coquivalents comprise
Halance wilh banks
= It urvent accoumt 547 1474
Cagh on hanl ni2 {1 #8
5 50 1562
(1] *Reconciliation between the opening and chosing balances in the halance sheet for labilities srising from financing sctivities
Mo curment bommowings Curem Lease lislilives
iineluding eurent borrewing
maturities )
Opemng 53 21549 I B3
Value sccroed from merger 1200 145 biv -
Total Balance 13736 36118 1.63
Transfer from Rovahes Lighnag LLE
Lo dhraswds (o cash Fimterest scemued during the venr 349 30 ) Wy s
Loan repayment / interes payment during the year 11148 JE3 42 23 I

Balwnee a5 on Mareh 31, 2024 37518 117 73 a1 T




Moses
il The sintement of cash Tow has been prepared under the indinect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows

1) Figures in brackets indicae cosh outilow
i) Figures for the pervious yvear hive been regrouped wherever considered nocesssry

W) Current taxes paid are treated as arising from operating and are not bifurcarsd between imvesting and financing sctivitics

The accompanyving noies are an inlegral part of these financial statements

As per aur report of even date
For BGIC & Associates LLP For amd on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Rayalox Lighting Private Limited

\
=3

Hardeep®i Sanjeet Singh
Director Diirector

DIN: 00118729

-
‘- g'l P
Sanjay Singh
Chiet Finunginal Officer
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(iv)

1.

Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Background

Royalux Lighting Private Limited (formerly Royalux Lighting LLP) (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in
India, with its registered office situated at Delhi. The Company was incorporated in India on March 23, 2022, the
Company has received approval from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for the conversion from Royalux Lighting

LLP, (a Limited Liability Partnership firm) to Royalux Lighting Private Limited. The Company is manufacturer of
commercial refrigeration LED lights,

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) - read with the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”)), as amended and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board

of Directors on May 24, 2024. The revisions to the financial statements are permitted by the Board of Directors
after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule I11 to the Act.

Based on the above criteria, the Company has ascertained its accounting cycle as twelve months for the purpose of
current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR/Rs.), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

'%d benefit liability Present value of defined b;g{ﬁﬂ'b'ﬁl‘r@ﬁgns.




v)

(vi)

Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect

the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

* Note no. 38: leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease.

* Note no. 45: classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held
and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2024 is included in the following notes:

* Note no. 3: measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment;

* Note no. 3 & 6: impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts
including the recoverability of expenditure on internally- generated intangible assets;

* Note no. 6: measurement of useful lives of intangible assets:

e Note no. 48: recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses
carried forward can be used:

* Note no. 40: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources;

* Note no. 47: Fair value measurement of financial instruments and impairment of financial assets.

Measurement of fair value

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either —

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or




2.1

(i)

Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole.

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, For the year ended March 31, 2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

Summary of material accounting policies

Revenue

In recognising revenue, the Company applies Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether. how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard require apportioning revenue
earned from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling price basis,
using a five-step model.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount that reflect
the consideration which the company expects to receive in exchange for those product or services at the fair value

of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of any taxes/duties and
discounts,

The company earns revenue from sales of LED lighting

Revenue from sale of LED lighting

Revenue from Sale of LED lighting is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of promised goods to
the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods
i.e. when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits associated with the transaction and the related
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,

which is generally the contracted price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts considering the impact of variable
consideration.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration. adjusted for volume discounts,
eryice level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives.i
vilig customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers .\}G‘

any, as specified in the contract
4




Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Contract Balances
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition: -

® The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods.

® At the time of entering into the agreement / raising an invoice, performance obligations in the contract are
identified. The Company delivers goods as per terms & condition of the contract. Contracts are of differing
natures and sometimes have one specific performance obligation, and on other occasions have multiple
performance obligations. Contract Liability has been created towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied
performance obligations.

e Contract fulfilment costs are expensed as incurred.

Interest income
Interest income on time deposits and inter-corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other income
In respect of other heads of income, the Company follows the practice of recognising income on accrual basis.

(ii)  Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), which
includes capitalised borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.




(iii)

Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value over
their useful life using written down value method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are
as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule I of the Act.

Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Property Plant & Equipment:

Furniture and fixtures 10

Plant & Machinery 15

Office equipment 5

Vehicle 8-10
Computer equipment 3

Computer Servers and networks 6

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on addition
to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use.

Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction
or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if any,
are accounted for prospectively.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will
flow to the company and where its cost can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost

attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use GhT)
, b ! "'IL'-"‘-' ¥
L ‘) b
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the written
down value method and is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets: Useful lives (in years)
Software 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if any,
are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and recognised as income or
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect
of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. ;Tff“ “*;
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through profit and loss.
Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is expensed in the statement of
profit and loss.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

e amortised cost;
s  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or
e Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as FVTPL:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
FVTPL:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,




Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI
or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

o the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

o how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

» the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

e how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

o the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered

sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

« contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

+ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment and
extension features; and

s that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (¢



Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial
asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVTOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other

net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVTOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement & gain and loss

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in

the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

fii. Offsetting

Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simu]m:mously\
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

iv. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

v. Impairment of financial instruments:
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: -

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVTOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities
at FVTOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise:

it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or another financial reorganisation; or
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.




Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Expected credit loss:
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward
looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed
credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

e the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

e the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance

with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects 10 receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the

-nfercement activities in order to
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
weighted average.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated

costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis.
Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the related
services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are presented as current employee

benefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a predetermined
rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, These
contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The Company has no
further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contribution to defined
contribution plan are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss in the period during
which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments to
vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount equivalent
to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

Benefits payable to eligible employees of the company with respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service
cost as at the balance sheet date. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined
benefit obligation is recognised as an income Or exXpense in the other comprehensive income. The Company’s
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amoug
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount. \}G’

of future benefit that employees
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The Company’s determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the heginning of the annual period to
the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised in the Other
Comprehensive Income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences

Benefits under the Company’s compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits. The liability in
respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except 10 the
extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and setile the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also
recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
dhat it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
¢ fit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
dsed or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recogniséi
Fio longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be rea

once that sufficient
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or cubstantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income 1axes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be real.

Contingent Liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions
Contingent liability

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
(.)f -three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject fo an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Ban

ficant risk of k overdrafis are shown within borrowings in current
financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding da;ﬁg_;hﬂ eriod. The weighted average
Ep

rs of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for eve
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i ing during the period are adjusted
the weighted average number of shares outstanding : :
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares as at the

beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision maker.

rating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment information

In accordance with Ind AS 108 —Ope
Management to allocate resources t0 the

are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s
segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant

in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-

segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.
The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:
1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly .dentifiable with / allocable to the segment.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the
segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are
included under unallowable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in unallowable
income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallowable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole
and not allocable to any segment.

The E:nard of Director(s) are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker” or ‘CODM’ within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 42 for segment information.

Leases
The Company as a lessee




Royalux Lighting Private Limited (Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP}
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

At the date of commencement of the Jease, the Company recognises a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognises the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU asscts are evaluated for recoverability whenever events of changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generaie cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or. if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the

lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease

;eparalately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset arising from the
ead lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
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Royalux Lighting Private Limited
{Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

7 Investmenis

Particulars Asal As ot
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of Amount Number of Amonnt
Shares Shares
L. Investment in equity instrument
(Unquoted, at cost)
a) In subsidiary companies
Royalux Exports Private Limited 9913220 135.31 - -
13531 -
Investment at subsidiary are stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 "Separate financial statements”.
Book value of aggrepate amount of unquoted investment.
Book value (in Million) 13531 -
Notes:
L.  Noinvestment is pledged as security by the company
IL Information of subsidiaries entities
Particulars Principal activity Place of Principal Proportion of ownership
incorporation place of Asat Asat
business March 31, 2024  March 31. 2023
Royalux Exports Private Limited (refer note 50) Manufacturing  Delhi Noida, India 100% 0%
8  Loans
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good
a) Loan to Subsidiary

= Inter corporate Loan 364.20 -
Notes:
I Disclosure of Loan and Advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiary
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Royalux Exports Private Limited (refer note 50) 364.20 -
364.20 -
9 Other financials assets (Non Current)
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good
a) Security Deposit

6.01 1.73

6.01 1.73

For explanation on the company credit risk management process, refer note 47




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLF)
(CIN:U31906D1.2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are trn INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

10 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
a) Deferred tax assets (refer note 48) 505 303
595 3.03
11 Non current tax asseis (net)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
a) Income Tax (Tax deducted at source) 18.90 1.03
1820 1.03
12  Other non current assefs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
a) Balance with govemnment authorities 1339 12.48
b) Capital advances (refer note 407) 1628 522
¢) Prepaid lease rent 0.55 0.07
d) Prepaid expenses 0.05 0.07
3027 17.77
13 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars Ag st As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
a) Raw Material 479.75 29463
b) Work in progress 42 67 16.76
¢) Finished goods 88.70 39.80
d) Other
i) Stock in transit - Raw Material .65 0.08
611.77 35127

Inventories are pledged as security for borrowings taken from bank (refer note 21 & 24)




Rovalux Lighting Private Limited
(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
{4l amownts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

14 Trade receivables

(Unsecured)
Particulars Anat As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

a) Trade receivables — considered good 21841 197.25
b) Trade receivables — having significamt increase in credit risk 3220 4383

250.61 241.08

¢} Allowances for doubtful debts (6.70) (8.35)

24391 232.73

Footnote:
Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables- March 31, 2024

Fastoniv Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 from due date of payment

Not due =3 Total
-6 More than

Meithis 6-12 months 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years Year
1) Undisputed Trade receivables — 136.09 8232 - - - - 218.41

considered good

i)  Undisputed Trade receivables — having - - 21.09 B.73 0.71 1.67 32.20
significant increase in credit risk

1ii) Undisputed Trade receivables — credit - - - EE - - -
impaired

iv) Disputed Trade receivables — considered - - - - - - -
good

v} Disputed Trade receivables — having - = - i = &
significant increase in credit risk

vi) Disputed Trade receivables — credit - - . - - - -
impaired

Less: provision for the expected credit loss - = (2.49) (2.19) (0.36) (1.67) (6.70)
| 136.09 I 82.32 l 18.60 I 6.54 | 0.35 | - 243.91




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLF)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
(ANl amounis are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Ageing Schedule for Trade Reccivables- March 31, 2023

Particulars Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 from duc date of payment

Not due 0-6
f- 1-2 Yea
M 12 months rs

2-3 Years

More than 3
Year

Taotal

i} Undisputed Trade receivables — - 197.25 - -
considered good

197.25

ii) Undisputed Trade receivables — having - - 3585 353 1.15

significant increase in credit nsk

3.30

43.83

i) Undisputed Trade receivables — credit - = - »
impaired

iv) Disputed Trade receivables — considered - - - £
good

v) Disputed Trade receivables — having - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

vi) Disputed Trade receivables — credit = > = *
impaired

Less: provision for the expected credit loss - - (3.59) (0.88)

(0.58)

(3.30)

(B.35)

Total L a | m.zsl 32_251 z.ﬁsl 0.57

I i

232.73

The Company has measured expected credit loss of trade receivable based on simplified approach as per Ind AS 109 - ‘Financial Instrument’

1. For explanation on the Company credit risk management process, refer note 47

2, Trade receivables are non interest bearng

3 Trade receivables are pledged as securitics for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 21 and 24)

15 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Asat

As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Balances with banks
-On current accounts
b) Cashon hand

547 14.74
0.12 088
5.59 15.62

For explanation on the company credit risk management pracess, refer note 47




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
{Formerly Royalux Lighting LLFP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

16 Other Bank Balances

Particulars Asat As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Fixed deposit (having maturity period of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 0.88 133
088 133
For explanation on the company credit risk management process, refer note 47
These term deposits has been pledged against Bank Guarantees to HDFC Bank Limited.
17  Other financial assets
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
a) Security depasiis 1.99 0.07
k) Others recoverable 0.15 015
¢) Interest receivables 475 k
6.89 022
For explanation on the company eredit risk management process, refer note 47
18 Other current assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
a} Prepaid expenses 2.16 0.80
b) Advance to suppliers 826 T.07
c) Advance salary & wages 1.01 022
d) Balance with government authorities 6.72 1.68
¢) Prepaid lease rent 020 0.04
f) Other assels 028 0.49
18.63 10.30




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906D1L2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

19  Equity share capital

Particulars As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Authorised
Equity shares of 210/~ each 2RO00000 280.00 -
lssued, subseribed and paid up
Equity shares of 210/~ each fully paid up 9941197 99.4] 8244500 B2.45
9941197 99.41 8244500 8245

a) Reconciliation of equity shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year = # = 2

Share issued 9941197 99.41 8244500 8245
Balance as at the the end of the year 9941197 99.41 8244500 82.45

b} Terms and rights of equity shareholders
The company has only one class of equity shares having per value of 210/~ per share Each holder of equity shares is entitled o one vote per share In
the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by each share holders. There is no restriction on

distribution of dividend, however, the same is subject to the approval of the share holders in the annual general meeting except in the case of mterim
dividend

¢)  Details of holders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company,

Particulars | _AsatMarch31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
IKIO Lighting Limited (and its nominee) (refer note 50) 9od1197 9941 - -
Fine Technologies (India) Private Limaited (and its nominee) - - 8244500 82.45

d) Details of share held by Promoters

Particulars | Asat March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023 % change during
Mo of shares Amount No. of Amount the year
shares

Promoter’s Name

IKIO Lighting Limited (and its nominee) (refer note 50)
No's of Shares 9941197 99.41 - * 100.00%
% Holding 100.00% 100.00% -

Fine Technologies {India) Private Limaited (and its nomineg)

No's of Shares s =

% Holding




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
{(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
{CIN:HSIWSDLMZIFI’CM!I)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

€)

Dividend and proposed dividend

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders
in ensuing Annual general meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. The Company has not distributed any dividend in the current

year.

Shares held by Holding or ultimate Holding company

The Holding Company of Royalux Lighting Private Limited is "IKIO Lighting Limited"

20 Other equity

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) General reserve 453 -
b) Securities premium 242.00 -
¢)  Other comprehensive income 217 (0.14)
d) Capital reserve (17947) .
e} Retined eamings T91.86 24354
a) General reserve
Opening Balance 4.53 -
Transfer for share option exercised during the year/period -
Clesing Balance 4.53 -
b}  Securities premium
Opening Balance - -
Add : Premium on issue of Shares 242 .00 =
Less : Share issued expenses = -
Closing Balance 242.00 -
¢) Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Opening Balance (0.14) =
Addition from merger 130 -
Remeasurement Gain / (Loss) on defined benefit plans, net of income tax 1.01 (0.14)

Closing Balance

(0.14)




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
{Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise siated)

d) Capital Reserve

Opening Balance . e
Cancellation of Fine Technologics (India) Private Limited shares (2.00) E
Capital Reserve on Merger (177.47) -
Closing Balance (179.47) =

€) Retnined earnings

Opening Balance 243.54 =
Add:  Value from Merger 209.45 104.41
Profit for the vear/period 338.87 243 54
Less: Appropriation, if any s "
Withdrawal during the year/period . 104.41
Closing Balance 791.86 243 .54

Motes:

a) General reserve:

The General Reserve represents free reserves being an appropriation of profit/retained earnings and kept aside to meet the future requirements as and
when they arise. Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013. As the general reserve is created by transfer from
one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve are not reclassified
subsequently to the Statement of Profit and Loss,

b) Securities preminm

The amount received in excess of the face value of the equity shares issued by the Company is recognised in securities premium. It can be used for issue
of bonus shares, write off of equity related expenses ete.

¢} Other Comprehensive Income
Other Comprehensive Income comprises the balance of Remeasurement of retirement benefit plans.
d) Capital Reserve on Merger

Capital reserve on amalgamation is used to record the difference between the earrying value of investment of the merging companies and the carrying
value assets, liabilities, as per the accounts of the transferor company and the difference between the face value of shares issued to the shareholders of the
transferee company and the share capital of the transferes company, based on share exchange ratio as per the scheme of amalgamation (refer note 50).

€) Retained earnings




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
{Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022FTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
{41l amounis are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

21 Borrowings (Non current)
(at amortised cost)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I} From Bank (Secured)
a) Term loan
WVehicle Loans 3478 12.74
Less : Current maturities of long term borrowings 890 438
25.88 B.36
1) From Inter corporate {Unsecured)
a) Inter corporate borrowing 349.30 -
349.30 -
Total 375.18 8.36
Secored Loan
for the year ended March 31, 2024
Vehicle Loan

a) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amounting to ¥ 4.5 millions which is secured against the respective vehicle and is repayable in 48 equal
instalments commencing from October 05, 2021, Rate of interest is 7.10% p.& and balance outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is ¥ 1.84 millions out
of which ¥ 1.20 millions is repayable upto March 31, 2025.

b) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amounting to ¥ 3.7 millions which s secured against the respective vehicle and is repayable in 39 equal

instalments commencing from March 03, 2021. Rate of interest is 7 30% p.a and balance outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is ¥ 0.21 millions out of
which ¥ 0.21 millions is repavable upto March 31, 2025

¢) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amounting to ¥ 9.00 millions which is secured against the respective vehicle and is repayable in 48 equal
instalments commencing from December 12, 2022 Rate of interest is 7.90% p.a and balance outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is % 6,31 millions out
of which T 2.21 millions is repayable upto March 31, 2025,

d) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amounting to ¥ 29.70 millions which is secured against the respective vehicle and is repayable in 48 equal
nstalments commencing from August 05, 2023, Rate of interest 15 8.45% p a and balance outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is % 26 42 millions out
of which ¥ 5.27 millions is repayable upto March 31, 2025,

for the year ended March 31, 2023
Vehicle Loan

a) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amounting to Rs. 4.5 millions which is secured against the respective vehicle and is repayable in 48 equal
instalments commencing from October 05, 2021. Rate of interest is 7.10% p.a and balance outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 2.96 millions out
of which Rs. 1.12 millions is repayable upto March 31, 2024

b) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amounting to Rs. 3.7 millions which is secured against the respective vehicle and is repayable in 39 equal
nstalments commencing from March 03, 2021, Rate of interest is 7.30% p.a and balance outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is Rs 1.43 millions out
of which Rs. 1,22 millions is repayable upto March 31, 2024,

¢) Vehicle Loan availed from HDFC Bank amounting to Rs. 9.00 millions which is secured against the respaclwe vehicle and is repayable in 48 equal
instalments commencing from December 12, 2022. Rate of interest is 7.90% p.a and balance outsianding.as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 8.35 millions
out of which Rs. 2.04 millions is repayable upto March 31, 2024,




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
{CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Unsecured
for the year ended March 31, 2024
Inter corporate borrowing

Inter Corporate Borrowing carrying interest rate @ 9.50% shall be repaid at the expiry of 3 years from the date of disbursement (IKIO Lighting

Limited 349 30 million), refer note 50.

22 Lease liabilities (Non Current)

Particulars

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
a) Non Current
i)  Lease liabilities T4.07 111
7407 1.11
A) Movement in lease liabilities during the year/period
Particulars Note No As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
a) Lease habilities
1) Non Current 74.07 1.1
i) Current 19.65 033
b) Balanee at the beginning of the year/period 1.63 -
Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP - 1622
Addition during the year/period 107.98 1.80
Finance cost accrued during the vear/period
- Capital work in progress s
= Statement of profit and loss account 7.26 1.15
Payment of lease liabilities 23.16 9.14
Derecognised during the vear/period - 840
Balance as at end of the year/period 9371 1.63
c) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
The table below provides details regarding the maturities of lease liabilities
Due with one year 19.65 053
Due later than one year and not later than five years T4.07 1.11
Due later than five years - =
Total 9372 1.64




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
(Al amounis are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

d) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Interest on lease obligations 36 726 115
Depreciation on right-of-use-assets i7 18.60 704
Expenses relating to short term and low value leases 38 15.60 471

(included in other expenses)

€) Cash outflow of the leases
Payment of lease liabilities 2316 914

Expenses relating to short term and low value leases 15.60 471

i.  The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regards to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
ablizations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

ii. Rental expenses recorded for short-term and low value leasses is 2 156 Mn for the year ended March 31, 2024 (2 4 71 Mn for the vear ended
March 31, 2023) the same have been recorded under the head other epenses in the financial statement.

i) Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains to buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course The
Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract

23 Provisions {Non current)

Particulars As it As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Provision for employees benefits (refer note 43)

Gratuity 1.35 330
Compensated absences 263 0.60
398 390

24 Borrowings (Current)

(at amortised cost)

Particulars As al As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) From Banks (Secured)
i} Cash Credits 38.83 147.06
ii) Term Loan - 64.05
b) From Related parties (Unsecured)
i) Directors 60.00 -

¢} Current maturities of long term borrowings (Secured) B.90 438

215.49




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP}

(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024

Al amounts are in INR Million, unless ctherwise stated)
Secured Loan

for the year ended March 31, 2024

a)

b)

Cash Credit
HDFC Bank Limited,

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the company has been sanctioned cash credit facilities amounting to Rs. 186 millions, The facility is secured
by way of charge on Stock, Deblor & BG Margin, Also there is collateral guarantee in form of equitable mortgage on industrial property of 1IKIO
Solutions Pvt Ltd, Noida (a related party). Further, there are personal guarantees of directors. The loan carries a floating rate of interest currently
£.35% per annum (Repo rate+Spread).

Term Loan

The Company has availed loan against property from Standard Chartered Bank which are secured against property situated at Villa No. 01, Plot No.
1. Type K ATS greens village, Sec 93A, Expressway, Noida, Uttar Pradesh . The tenure of the loan is 180 months to be fully paid by September 30,
2034, The loan carries floating rate of interest of MCLR Rate +0,50% p.a at half yearly reset. The said loan has been prepaid during the year

for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

aj

b)

Cash Credit
HDFC Bank Limited,

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the company has beén sanctioned cash credit facilities amounting to Rs. 186 millions. The facility is secured
by way of charge on Stock, Debtor & BG Margin. Also there is collateral guarantee in form of equitable mortgage on industrial property of TKIO
Solutions Pvt Ltd, Noida (a related party), Further, there are personal guarantees of directors. The loan carries a floating rate of interest currently
8.35% per annum (Repo rate+Spread),

Term Loan

The Company has availed loan against property from Standard Chartered Bank which are secured against property situated at Villa No. 01, Plot Mo,
1, Type K ATS greens village, Sec 93A, Expressway, Noida, Uttar Pradesh . The tenure of the loan is 180 months to be fully paid by September 30,
2034. The loan carries floating rate of interest of MCLR Rate +0.50% p.a at half yearly reset.

The term loan against property from Standard Chartered Bank which are secured against property situated at Plot No. 10, Block - A, Sector - 68
Nouda, Uttar Pradesh - 201305. The loan carries floating rate of interest of MCLR Rate -+0.50 p a at half yearly resets. The said loan has been
prepaid during the period

The term loan against property from Standard Chartered Bank which are secured against property situated at Plot No. 10, Block - A, Sector - 68
Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201305. The loan carries floating rate of interest of Repo Rate+3.75% p.a at quarterly resets. The said loan has been prepaid
during the period.

for the year ended March 31, 2024
Unsecured

c)

Loan from Related Parties T
Interest free loan repayable on demand from directors as at Marach 31, 2024 (Mr. Hardeep Singh ,@,@%Iw(




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
(All amounis are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

25 Lease liabilities (Carrent)

Particulars

As at

As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Current
i) Lease Liabilities (refer note 22)

19.65 0.53
19.65 0.53
26 Trade payables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 41) 1587 63.04
b) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 68.04 3110
83.9] 94.14
Ageing Schedule for Trade Pavable- March 31, 2024
Particulars Not due Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of
payment
Total
Less than 1 year] 1-2 Years| 2-3 Years RO
Years
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 15.87 - - - = 1587
ENETprises
i)  Total ontstanding dues of creditors other than micro 49,34 17.26 112 0.32 - 68.04
enterprises and small enterprises
ui) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small - - - -
enterprises
iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises - - - - -
and small enterprises
65.21 17.26 1.12 0.32 - 83.91
Ageing Schedule for Trade Payable- March 31, 2023
Particulars Mot due Ouistanding for the following periods from the due date of
1
Less than 1 year|  1-2 Years| 2-3 Years| P o
YEArs
i) Total oustanding dues of micro enterprises and small 63.04 = - 63.04
enterprises
i) Total putstanding dues of creditors other than micro 29.72 0.92 046 3110
enterprises and small enterprises
i) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small = - - -
enterprises
iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises # - = =
and small enterprises
63.04 2972 0.92 46 94,14

1) For trade payables 1o related parties please refer note 44.

it) Trade creditors are non interest bearing.

iii) The company exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables are disclosed in note no 47

iv) Suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 are disclosed j




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)
Notes to the Financial Statement as at March 31, 2024
(Al amounis are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

27 Other financial liabilities (Current)

Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
a) Interest acerued but not due T.14 044
b) Expense payable 209 436
¢) Other payables 2225 7186
3148 12.66
28 Other current liabilities
Particolars Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
a)  Statutory dues payable 7.89 613
b) Advance from customers 9.53 14.64
1742 2077
29 Provisions {Current)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employees benefits (refer note 43)
a)  Gratuity 154 027
b) Compensated absences 0.32 007
1.86 0.34
30 Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars Asar As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax liabilities {net) 289 927




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395419)

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

31 Revenue from operations

Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31,2024 March 23, 2022
Marclt;;!. 2023
a) Sale of products 1,952.88 1,324 70
b} Sale of services 2.00 0.27
Notes

A) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregate based on nature of product

a) Revenue from sale of products

Manufactured goods 1,952.88 1,32470
1,952 88 1,324.70

b} Revenue from sale of services
Job Work Charges 200 0.25
Sale of service - 002
200 0.27

B) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography
a) Domestic 1,950.91 1,324 88
b) Exports 1.97 0.09




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

32 Other Income

Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31, 2024 March 23, 2022
o
March 31, 2023
I.  Interest Income on:
a) Fixed deposit 0.03 032
b) Loan to subsidiaries 21.03 -

Il. Other non-operating Income

a) Foreign exchange fluctuation gain {net) 258 010
b) Reversal of provision for expected credit loss 3.65 337
¢} Finance income on amortisation of security deposit 0.15 017
d) Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments - (.10
e) Excess liabilities, credit balances, provisions etc. writien back 1.50 002
f)  Gain related to compensated absences - 018
g) Gain on derecognition of lease - 218

28.94 6.44

33 Cost of material consumed

Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31, 2024 March 23, 2022
to
March 31, 2023
Raw Matenal at the beginning of the year/period 407.53 -
Add:  Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP - 212.14
Purchases {including Components) 1,091 45 B70.67
1,498 98 1,082.81
Less : Raw material at the end of the year/period 479.82 294.63

1.019.16 TER.18




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

34 Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31,2024 March 23, 2022
o
March 31, 2023
A, Inventory at the beginning of the year/perfiod
1) Finished goods 55.57 -
ii) ‘Work in progress 26,68 -

B. Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP

i} Finished goods - 16.73
ii) ‘Waork in progress : 23.85
(A+B) B2.25 40.58
C. Inventory at the end of the year/period
i}  Finished goods BE49 35.80
i) Work in progress 42.80 16.76
<y 131.29 56.56
Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress (A+B-C) (49.04) (15.98)
35 Employee benefits expense
Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31, 2024 March 23, 2022
ﬂ-llmﬂl.';h 2023
a) Salaries & wapes, bonus & other allowances 191.88 B0.51
b) Director's remunemtion 13.21 10.01
¢} Contribution to provident and other funds 14.53 4.60
d) Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans (refer note 43) 422 1.85
¢)  Expenses related to compensated absences 1.55 =
f}  Staff welfare expenses : 623 1.27

23162 98.24




Royalux Lighting Private Limited
(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31906DL2022PTC39542%)

Naotes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

36 Finance Costs

Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31,2024 March 23, 2022
1o
March 31, 2023
a) Interest on borrowing 3399 2125
b) Other borrowing costs 11.97 527
c) Interest on lease lisbilities (refer note 22} 726 1.15
d) Interest on statutory dues 233 0.13
55.55 27.80
37 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31, 2024  March 23, 2022
fo
' March 31, 2023
a) Depreciation and amortisation expense (refer note 3 & 6} 4131 11,65
b} Depreciation on right of use assets (refer note 5) 18.60 7.04
5891 18.69




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP}
(CIN:U31906DL.2022PT(395429)

Notes to the Financial Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

38  Other expenses

Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31, 2024 March 23, 2022
to
March 31, 2023
Legal and professional charges 2706 10.59
Tour and travelling expense 21,60 177
Freight and forwarding 14.60 9.73
Job work charges 11,63 677
Installation and extraction charges 2283 639
Repair and maintenance expense 2528 6.10
Advertisement expenses - 501
Commission expenses 4.49 5.03
Electricity and waler expenses 25.56 4123
Rent 15.60 4.71
Rates and taxes 3.58 1.53
Generator running expenses 435 1.28
Insurance 212 1.20
Auditor remuneration (refer footnote-(i)) 1.40 0.59
Conveyance 0.90 0.28
Loading and unloading charges 047 0.64
Business promotion 0.63 0.72
Consumable goods and dies & tools 483 0.51
Vehicle expense 1.31 0.85
Lab testing and Research & Development expenses 3.86 0.87
Security and maintenance charges 212 0.95
Printing and stationery 1.05 0.66
Balance written off 1.20 1.36
Telephone expense 136 0.32
Vehicle running expense 0.55 0.33
Postage and courier charges 0.04 0.04
Packing and forwarding expense 019 0.14
Rebate and discount 0.04 0.40
Subscription 0.15 0.09
Donation 0.04
Corporate social responsibilities expenses (refer footnote-(ii)) 841
Loss on Sale of property, plant and equipment 0.03
Miscellaneous expnses 027 1.01
Director sitting fees 031 -
209.86 84,10




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

{Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
{CIN:U31906DL2022PT(395429)

Notes 1o the Financial Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Note :
i} Payment to auditors comprises;
Particulars Year ended Period from
Mareh 31, 2024 March 23, 2022
(1]
March 31, 2023
Statutory auditors
Audit and limited review fees 128 0.59
Out of pocket expenses 0.12 *
1.40 0.59
ii) Corporate Social Responsibility

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of average net profit of the
immediately preceding three financial year on corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") activities The nature of CSR activities identified are eradication
of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitatin, environment sustainablity, disaster relief and
rural development projects. The Company has formed a CSR committee as per the Act.

(I} The amount spent by the Company on CSR activities is as below:

Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31,2024 March 23, 2022
to
March 31, 2023
A. Gross amount required 1o be spent by the Company 541 *
Total (A) §.41 -

B. Amount spent by the company
a. Expenditure / payments

Transform Foundation 251 -
D-Cacus Foundation 590 -
Total (b) 841 -

C. Shortfall at the end of the vear = L
There is no payment made to related parties

(IT) Deails of CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects
Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31, 2024 March 23, 2022
o
March 31, 2023

Balance as at the beginning of the year/penod - -
Amount required to be spent during the year/period §.41 =
Amount deposited in a specified fund of Schedule VI of the Act within 6 months # =
Amaount spent during the year/period

Shorifall/{excess) as at the closing of the year/period




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
{CIN:U31906DL2022PTC395419)

Naotes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

39 Earnings per share ("EPS")

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Basic EPS
Profit for the year 338,87 243.54
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 9276467 8244500
Face value of per share 10 10
Basic earnings per share 36.53 29.54
b) Diluted EPS
Profit for the year 338.87 243.54
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulation of diluted EPS (See note below) 9276467 8244500
Face value of per share 10 10
Diluted earnings per share 36.53 20.54
40 Contingent Liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
Particulars Asai As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
a. I Guaraniees issued by bankers on behalf of Company =
{These are covered by the charge created in favour of Company's hanker by way of hypothecation of stock
and trade receivable besides pledge of fixed deposits as margin money)
ii. Corporate guarantees given to the banks on hehalf of subsidiaries for purpose of financial assistance. 18.90
iit.  Bill discounted with banks
b. Contingent Liabilities
Disputed tax and other liabilities for:
i. Income tax 116 .
il Sales tax
iii, excise, custom duty and service tax 2.56 i
Capital Commitments
Capital commitments (Net of capital
i apital commitments (Net of capital advance) 1174 168




Royalux Lighting Private Limited

(Formerly Royalux Lighting LLP)
(CIN:U31206DL2022PTC395429)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise stated)

41 Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006;

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

The principal smount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any MSME supplier as at the end
of each accounting yvear included in:

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1587 63,04
Interest due on ubove

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED ACT 2006 along with the amounts B -
of the payment made to the supplicr beyond the appainted day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond B -
the appointment day during the year) but without adding the Interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such date when the - -

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible under
section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

41  Segment reporting
A Basis for Segmentation

An operating segment is a compenent that engages in business activities from which it may cam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that refate 1o transactions with any of the other components, and for which discrete financial information is available

The board of directors. have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM), since they are responsible for all major decision w.rt the
preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger and acquisition, and expansion of
The Company's board reviews the results of each segment on & quarierly basis. The company's board of directors uses Profit afier tax (PAT) o assess

the performance of the operating segments. Accordingly, there is only one reportable segment for the Company which is "Sale of Produet” | hence, no
specific disclosures have been made.

Entity wide disclosures
B. Information about reportable segments

The Company deals in one business segment namely Manufacturing of LED Lighting therefore, product wise revenue disclosures are not appliceble to
the Company.

1} Information about geographical areas

Company operates primanly under a single geographic location i ¢. India and accordingly, there are no separaic reporiable geographical segments.

C.  Revenue from major customers

Revenue from one customer amounting in Royalux Lighting Private Limited is Rs 276.23 million
than 10% of the total revenue of the company.

million), which is more




43 Employee Benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in lodin.
A Defined contribution plans:
The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying emplovees towards provident

fund, administered and managed by the government of India. The Company has no obligations other than 10 make the specified contributions. The
eantributions are charged to the statement of profit and less as they acerue.

Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31,2024  March 23, 2022
to
March 31, 2023
Contnbution to provident fund 1170 154

B. Defined bencfit plan:
Gratuity
The Company operaics a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. This plan entitles an employee 1o receive half month's salary for each vear
of completed service at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity liakility 15 entirely funded.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognise each period of
service as giving rise 1o additional employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation

“The most recent actuarial valuation of present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out s at March 31, 2024 The present

value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.”

a)  The following table set out the siatus of the defined benefit obligation:

FParticulars As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31,2023

Net defined benefit liability

Gratuity 2.89 3.57
Total employee benefit liabilities 2.89 31.57
Non-current 1.35 3.30

Current 1.54 0.27




b}

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit linbility

The following table shows a reconcilistion from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined henefit (asset) liability and its

components:
Particulars As at March 31, 2024
Defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit
(asset)/ lability
Opening Balance 3.57 - 357
Belance accrued from merger 7.8% - T89
Total 11.46 - 11.46
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 330 - 3.30
Imierest cost (income) 0.93 - 0.93
4.23 - 4.23
Included in OCI
Remeasurement loss (gain)
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Financial assumptions 030 - 030
Demographic assumptions S = %
Experience adjustment (1.13) - (1.13)
{0.83) % (0.83)
Other
Contributions paid by the employer - 10,88 10.88
Acquisition [ Business combination/Divestiture 0.95 - 0.95
Benefits paid 0.14 - 0.14
1.09 10.88 11.97
Balance at the end of the year 13.77 (10.88) 2.89
Farticulars As at March 31,2023
Defined henefit Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets henefit
{nsset) linbility
Opening Balance 2.00 = 2.00
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost L.19 - 119
Interest cost (income) 0.20 - 0.20
1.39 - 13%
Included in OC1
Remeasurement loss (gain) =
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Financial assumptions 0.06 - 0.06
Demographic assumptions 026 - 026
Experience adjustment (0,14} . (0.14)
018 . 0,18
QG H TM;O
SANRE
= —
7(.3 ~




Other
Contnbubions paid by the employer
Benefits paid

Balance i the end of the year 3.57 - 3.57
Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31,2024  March 23, 2022
L]
March 31, 2023
Expenses recognised in the Staterent of profit and loss
Service cost 330 L18
Met interest cost 0.93 020
C. Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets
Particulars Year ended Period from
March 31,2024  March 23,2022
to
March 31, 2023
Plan assels at the beginning of the year
10.88 -
Actual company contributions
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gain/(loss) )
10.58 -

a)

b}

Plan assets at the end of the year

Economic Assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market vields available on government
bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities, Salary increase rate takes into sceount of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the company

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Discount Rate 7.060% 735%

Expected rate of future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

The discount rate has been assumed at March 31 2024 7.09% which is-determined by reference to market yield at the balance sheet date on
govermment securities. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion

and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market

Demographic assumptions

Particulars As mt As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years

Employee Tumover/ Withdrawal Rate 6.00% 6.00%

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability

0

LALM (2012-14)
UMtimate



D.  Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 1o one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligations by the amount shown betow:

As at March 31, 2024 As at Mareh 31, 2023
Particulars Increnase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (1.12) 1.31 (0.33) 039
Salary escalation rate (1% movement) 1.16 (1.04) 0.3s (D.31)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash Mlows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Sensitivities dee to mortality is not material and hence impact of change not calculated

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life EXPECIANCY &re not
applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement,

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain ussumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary aver time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follows:

i}  Salary Increases- More than expected increase in the future salary levels may results in increase in the linbilities.
ii}  Discount Rate: In case of yield on the government bonds drops in the future period then it may result in increase in liability.
iii} Withdrawals - if the actual withdrawal rate is turn out to be more or less than expected then it may result in increase in the liabilities

1w} Mortality - if the actual mortality rate in the future turns out to be more or less than expected then it may result increase in the liabilities,

E. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Duration of defined benefit obligation

Less than 1 vear 1.59 028
Between 1 - 2 years D45
Between 2 - § years 058
Over 5 Years 2.26
Total 3.57




Related Party Disclosure

In accordance with the requiremenis of Ind AS 24 on Related Pany Disclosures, the names of the related parties where control exists and/or with whom
transactions have taken place during the period and description of relationships. as identified and centified by the management are:

a)  List of related parties
Relationship Name af related party
Holding Company K10 Lighting Limited (refer note 50)
(From April 01, 2023)

Holding Company Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited {refer note 50)
(Since Seplember 12, 2022 till March 31, 2023)

Fellow subsidiary IKIO Solutions Private Limited
(Since September 12, 2022)

Enterprises in which key management Raina Metal Tech Private Limited
Z::;:Z‘;&?ﬁ::;f;:j" At Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited

(Till September 11, 2022)

IKIO Solutions Private Limited

(Till September 11, 2022)

IKIO Lighting Limited

(Till September 11, 2022)

Rovalux Exports Private Limited

Inko Technologies

Safe Solutions

Life Tek Solutions

IKIO LED Lighting LLC

Krishna Computzch International Private Limited

Singh Enterpnises

Key Managerial Personncl Mr. Hardeep Singh
Mr. Sanjeet Singh
Mrs. Ishween Kaur
Mr. Sanjay Singh
Mr. Satyaveer Singh
Mr., Chandra Shekhar Verma
Mr. Rohit Singhal

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel Mrs. Surmeet Kaur
* With whom significant transactions have been taken place during the year




b} Details of related party transactions are as below:

Particulars Year ended Period from

March 31, 2024 March 23, 2022
to
March 31, 2023

Transaction during the period

Expenses

Purchases and Others

IKIO Lighting Limited 57.40 10.82

IKIO Solutions Private Limited 3087 -

Fine Technologies India Private Limited = 229,84

Singh Enterprises 112

Singh Engineering 0.52

Krishna Computech Intermational Private Limited 0.02

Purchases of Property, plant and equipment

K10 Lighting Limited i1 0.08

Finance Costs

IKIO Lighting Limited 24.16 -

Other Expenses

Rent

Raina Metal Tech Private Limited 1086 -

Life Tek Solutivns 22,50 -

Repair & Maintenance (Factory)

Life Tek Solutions 897 -

Short Term Employee Benefits

Director's sitting fees (Non Exceutive Independent divectors)

Mr. Chandma Shekhar Verma 0.18 -

Mr. Rohit Singhal 013 .08

Director's Remuneration®™

Mr. Sanjeet Singh 10.81 10.01

Remunerations (Relative of KMP)*

Mrs. Surmeet Kaur 240

Salury to Relative of Key Managerial Personnel*
Mrs. Ishween Kaur 9.54 10.06




Farticulars Vear ended Period from

March 31,2024  March 23, 2022
w
March 31, 2023

Income

Revenue from operations

Royalux Expons Private Limited 65.29 46.46

IK10 Lighting Limited 373.63 15.40

Krishna Computech International Private Limited 1.31 296

Mr. Hardeep Singh 0.52 -

Mrs. Ishween Kaur 0.41 750

TKIO Solutions Private Limited 5.00 =

Inko Technologies 0.19 -

Singh Enterprises 581

[KIO Led Lighting LLC 0.39 -

Fine Technologies India Private Limited - 541

Sale of Property, plant and equipment

IKI0 Lighting Limited 0.63 =

IKIO Solutions Private Limited 431 -

Interest Income

Royalux Expons Private Limited 20.35 -

Repavment of loan taken

Mr Hardeep Singh - =

Mrs. Surmeet Kaur . "

IKIO Lighting Limited 24330 -

Loan Taken during the year

TKIO Lighting Limited 34950 -

Mr Hardecp Singh -

Mrs. Surmeet Kaur -

Investment in subsidiary during the year

Rovalux Exports Private Limited 45,00

Receipt of payment of loan given

Royalux Exports Private Limited 10,00 -

Loan given during the year

Royalux Exporis Private Limited 31160 -




Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

¢)  Balance outstanding with or from related partics as:-
Other Pavable
Royalux Exports Private Limited - 0.74
IKHOD Lighting Limitexd 0.59 .

Trade receivables

Royalux Expons Private Limited 4,95 -
Krishna Computech International Private Limited = 190
TKIO Lighting Limited 14,71 -
IKI0 Led Lighting LLC - 2.01
IKIO Solutions Private Limited 052 -
Singh Enterprises 677 -

Trade payables

Inko Technologies

Raina Metal Tech Private Limited - 0.14
LK1 Lighting Limited . 0.52
IKIO Led Lighting LLC - 019
Fing Technologies India Private Limited 34.35
IKIO Solutions Private Limited 017 .
Royalux Exports Private Limited E -
Singh Engineering 0.05 -

Loan Balance {Given)
Royalux Exports Private Limited 36420 -

Borrowings
IKIO Lighting Limited 349,30 5
Mr Hardeep Singh 0,00 =

Investment in subsidiary (refer note S0)
Royalux Expons Private Limited 135.31 -

Interest Receivable
Royalux Exports Private Limited 475 Z

Interest Payable
IKIO Lighting Limited 6.92

Security Deposits {(Given)
Raina Metal Tech Private Limited 1.80

Other Financial Liability
Remuneration Payahle
Mrs. Surmeet Kaur 0.16 -

Security/Equitable Mortgage taken from
IKIO Solutions Private Limited 3883 147.06

Corporate Guarantee! Personal Guarantee taken from

IKIO Solutions Private Limited 3883 147.06
Mr. Hardeep Singh 38.83 147.06
Mrs. Surmeet Kaur -

Mr. Sanjeet Singh 38.83 147.06
TKIO Lighting Limited : =

Corporate Guarantee given to
IKIO Solutions Private Limited 18.50 -

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties

i} The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel were no more favourable than those available, or which might

i) All outstanding balances with these related partics are priced on an arm’s length basis and are 1o be settled in cash. None of the halances are
*Provision for incremental gratuity liability and leave encashment for the current year in respeet of key managenient personnels has not been




46 Loan or advances granted to the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related parties:

47

a)  Earnings in foreign currency Year ended Period from
March 31, 2024  March 23, 2022
o
March 31, 2023
F.O.B. value of exports 1.97 0.84
b}  Expenditure in foreign currency Year ended Period from
March 31, 2024  March 23, 2022
fo
March 31, 2023
Purchase. value of imports
Raw material 371.62 365.15
PPE 16.55

No loan or advances in the nature of loans are granted to the promoters, directors, key managerial persons and the related parties (as defined under Companies

Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are;
a) repayable on demand or
b} without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Fair value measurement and financial instruments

4)  Financial instruments - by eategory and fair values hierarchy

The carrying amount of the Company's financial instruments is as below:

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Financial assets
L Measured at cost
1. Investments in subsidiaries 13531 -
I Measured at smortised cost
i, Other financial assets
- Non current 6.01 1.73
- Current 6.39 0.22
il. Trade receivables 4319 83373
i, Cashand cash equivalents 5,59 15.62
iv.  Other bank halances 0.88 133
v. Loans
- Mon current 364.20 -
= Current = =
[L  Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTFL)
i Investments
- Non current

- Current




Particolars Asat As at

March 31,2024  March 31,2023

Financial ligbilities

L. Measured at amortised cost
i.  Borrowings
- Non current 37518 836
- Current 107.73 21549
i, Lease liabilities
= Non current 74.07 L1l
= Current 19.65 0.53
iii. Trade payables 8391 94,14
iv.  Other current financial liabilities 3148 12 66
Level 1 It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.
Level 2; The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximize

the use of abservable market data and rely as litile as possible on entity specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: IT one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrament is included in level 3, The fair value of
financial assets and liabilities included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments,

The Company's borrowings have been contracted at floating rates of intorest Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest
accrued but not due) which approximates fiuir value:

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the fair
values, due to their shor-term nature. Fair value of non-current financial assets which includes bank depasits (due for maturity after twelve months from
the reporting date) and security deposits is similar to the carrying value as there is no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

The fair value for security deposits were calculated based on discounted cash flows using a current lending rate They are classified as level 3 fuir values
in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

Valuation processes

The Management performs the valuations of financial assets and liahilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, including level 3
fair values,




b)

Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
Credit nisk
Liquidity risk
Interest rate risk
Risk management framework
The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The

Board of Directors have authorised senior management 1o establish the processes and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of properly
defined framework in linc with the businesses of the company.

The Company's risk management policies are established 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risks limits and
comtrals, to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities.

The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, other price risk, credit risk, liquidity nisk, and the use
of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed on a conlinuous basis

i) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet

As at As at
Particalars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Trade Receivahles 24391 23273
Cash and cash equivalents 559 15.62
Bank Balances (Other than Cash & Cash Equivalents) D88 1.33
Otthers 2552 10.52

Credit risk 15 the risk of financial loss to the Company if a eustomer or eounterparty to a financial instrument fails 1o meet jts contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from irade receivables, Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived
from revenue carned from customers primarily located in India, The Company does monitor the e¢onomic environment in which it operates. The
Company manages its Credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring credit worthiness of customers
1o which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. The management uses a simplified approach (ie
based on lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impairment loss allowance.

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:

As at As at
Particulary March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance %34 =
Add : Balance accrued from merger 2.0
Add : Transfer from Royalux Lighting LLP - 1.7
Impairment Joss recognized / (reversed) (3.65) (337)

Balance at the end 6.70 8.34




1)

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial assel, The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed condtions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or nisking damage 1o the Company's reputation

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash (including bank deposits under lien and excluding interest accrued but not
due) of T 7.14 millions as at March 31, 2024 (previous year ¥ 0.44 millions) and the anticipated future internally penerated funds from aperations
will enable it to meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business.

The Company's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following,
- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows
Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and
includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings,

As at March 31, 2024
particulars Contractual cash flows

Carrying Between one

Amount m:,h“ €| yeartofive |Morethan five year Total

i years

Non Current
Borrowings 375,18 = 37518 - 37518
Lease liahilities 7407 - 7407 - 74.07
Current
Borrowings 107.73 107,73 " - 107.73
Lease liabilities 19.65 19.65 - - 19.65
Trade payables §3.91 B2 46 144 - B3 91
Dther financial liabilities 3148 3148 - - 31.48
Total 692.02 24132 450.69 - 692 02
As at March 31, 2023
particulars Contractual cash flows

Carrying Beiween one

Amount m;.l:: M| yeartofive |More than five year Total

Years

Non Current
Borrowings 836 - 836 - 836
Lease liahilities 111 - 111 - 111
Current
Bormowings 21549 215.49 - B 215.49
Lease liabilitics 0.53 053 - - 0.53
Trade payahles 54,14 9276 1.38 - o414

Total 31963 30878 10.85 - 319.63




i} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rmte risk, currency risk and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely:
currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within aceeptable
parameters, while optimizing the retum.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates The
Company is exposed 1o the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its fimancial position and cash flows to the
extent of eamnings and expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure arises primarily due io exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency
and other currencies from the Company's operating, investing and financing activities

Exposure to currency risk
The summary of quantitative data about the company exposurc to currency nisk, as expressed in Indian Rupees

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Currency Amount Currency Amount
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables INR. / Mn 0.98 USDS / Mn 0.01
Financial Liabilities

Trade Pavable INR / Mn 2897 USDS / Mn 0.35

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Currency Amount Currency Amount
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables INR { Mn 218 LSDE / Mn no3

Finanecial Liabilities
Trade Payable INR. { Mn 6.19 USDS / Mn 0.08

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company (o cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company's interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations exposes the
Compeny to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing 1o interest rate changes as reported to the management at the
end of the reporting period are a5 follows:

Variable-rate instruments As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Term Loan - 64,05

Cash Credit 38.83 14706

38.83 2111
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest tates at the reporting date would have increased {decreased) equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variablcs, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Particulars FProfit & Loss Equity, Net of Tax

50 bps increase | 50 bps decrease | 50 bps increase | 50 bps decrease

Interest on term loans from banks

For the period/year ended March 31, 2024 (0.19) 0.19 (0.15) 015
Faor the period ended March 31, 2023 (1.06) 1.06 (0.79) 0.79
Capital Mansgement

For the parpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves atiributable to the
equity holders of the Company,

Management assesses the Company®s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company maneges the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Campany may return capital 1o shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is caleulated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital {equity
atmibutable to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 Murch 31, 2023
Bormowings 48291 32385
Less : Cash and cash equivalent = 5.59 15.62
Adjusted net debt (A) 477.32 208.23
Total equity (B) 1026.47 325.85
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 0.47 0.64

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities the company is required 1o comply with the following finance covenants:

il

NWC of 25% to be maintained.




48 Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

A, Amounts recognised in Profit or Loss
Current tax expense

Current tax (including earlier vear)
Adjusiment for prior years

Deferred tax expense
Change in recognised temporary differences
Total Tax Expense

B.  Amounts recognised in Other Com prehensive Income
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability

For the period from March 23, 2022 to March 31, 2023

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability

€.  Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars
Profit before tax

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (A)
Tax effect of:

Non-deductible expenses

Non-taxable income

Others

Deferred Tax

Prior year errors/adjustment

Total (B)

(A}(B)

Year ended Period from
March 31, 2024 March 23, 2022
o
Mareh 31, 2023
12137 8732
(3.18) =
118.19 §7.32
{1.63) (0.48)
116.56 B6, B4
Before Tax Tax Net of Tax
136 (0.34) 1.01
Before Tax Tax Net of Tax
{0.19) 0.05 {0.14)
For the year ended Far the period from
March 31, 2024 March 23, 2022 to March 31, 2023
Rate Amount Rate Amount
25.17T% 45543 25.50% 33038
11463 B4 28
(20.99) (5.67)
14.83 2.80
(0.57) .
1.63 0,48
318 (0.16)
(1.93) (2.56)

11636 86 84




Movement in deferved tax balances
For the year ended March 31, 2024

For the period  Recognised in - Recognised in OCI For the year

from PL ended
Muarch 23, 2022 March 31, 2024
o
March 31,

2023*
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, plant and cquipment and intangibles
Employee benefits 1.07 074 (0.34) 1.47
Trade Receivables 2.10 (0.41) = 1.69
Lease liabilities 0.15 2344 = 2359
Other financial liabilities . r 5
Sub- Tatal (a) 3.32 23.77 (0.34) 26.75
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles 0.06 2.05 & 2.11
ROU assets (0.40) (22.51) - {22.91)
Other financial assets (0.00) 0.00 = -
Borrowings {0.00) 0.00 - -
Sub- Total (b) (0.36) (20.44) a {20.80)
Net Deferred Tax Asset (alHb) 2.96 333 (0.34) 5.95

* Including the value of Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited persueing to the merger scheme

For the period from March 23, 2022 to March 31, 2023

Balance Recognised in- Recognised in OCI For the period
Transferred PL from
from Royalux March 23, 2022
Lighting LLF as to
an April 22, March 31, 2023
2022
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Employee benefits (1.0} 247 0.05 1.07
Trade Receivables 4.09 (1.59) - 210
Lease liabilities 5.67 (5.52) . 0.15
Other financial labilities 0.11 (0.11) 4
Sub- Total (a) 878 15.51) .05 131
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles {1.58) 1.64 - 0.06
ROU assets (4.56) 416 = (0.40)
Other financial assets (0.07) 0.07 - (0.0}
Borrowings (0.07) 0.07 - (0.00)
Sub- Total (b) (6.28) 592 = (0.36)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)+{h) 250 041 0,05 2.9




49 Ratio analysis disclosure

Ratios: Formula Asat Az at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Current Ratio Current Assets 3135 1.73

Current Liabilitics

b) Debt Equity Ratio Tatal Debt /11 047 0.69
Total Sharcholder's Equity
Eazmings available for debt services 312 155

Finance Cast=Short term debt{including current

¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio maturities of long term debi}* C

Liability
Net Profit after taxes-Preference Dividend (if 0.33 0.75
d) Return on Equity Ratio
Equity Shareholders' Funds
€} Inventory Turnover Ratia Cost of Goods Sold 201 2.56
Average Inventory
f} Trade Recaivable Tumover Ratio Credit Sales 8.20 679
(Rater Now IV) Average Accounts Receivable
g) Trade Payables Tumover Ratio Credit Purchases 12.26 10.68
Average Accounts pavables
h} Met Capital Turnover Ratio Sales 443 560
Average Working Capital
i} Met Profit Ratio Net Prafit 0.23 0.5
Sales
1) Retumn on Capital Employed Ratio EBIT 3385 65,16
Capital Employed

Pursuant to and in terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation by and among Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) as Transferor
Company, Royalux Lighting Private Limited as Transferes Company (Step Down Subsidiary Company), the ratios computed for the vear ended March 31,
2024 contains conselidation of Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited from April 01, 2023 and is therefore not7orpaarahR

afs
infrrmatinn refor nate S0




50 Scheme of amalgamation of Royalus Lighting Private Limited with Fine Technologies India Private Limited

a)

b)

<)

d)

)

g

Proposed Composite Scheme of Armngement (Scheme), approved by the Board on 12th August 2022 between the following companies;

- Royalux Lighting Private Limited
- Fine Technologies India Privaie Limited

Pursuant 1o and in terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation by and among Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited (Holding Company) as Transferor
Company, Rovalux Lighting Private Limited as Transferee Company (Subsidiary Company}, under Sections 233 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other
applicable provisions of the Act, read with the Companies (Compromises, Asrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (*Scheme™), which was
approved by the Regional Director (NR) vide its order dated March 18, 2024 which came into effect from April 01, 2023

Pursuant to the Composite Scheme Royalux Lighting Private Limited would amalgamate with the Company from the appointed date i.e April 01, 2023
wherein Fine Technologics India Private Limited shall cease to exist.

Pursuant to Part [T of the Scheme, upon the effective date and with effect from the appointed date, Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited shall stand
merged in the Company. In so far as the amalgamation of Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited into the Company is concerned, upon the effective
date, the equity shares of the Company held by TKIO Lighting Limited in Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited shall be sutomatically cancelled, and
simultaneously and concurrent with such cancellation, the Company shall issue and allot equity shares, such that for every 1 {One) fully paid up equity
share of  10/- each of Fine Technologies India Private Limited held by the equity share holders of TKIO Lighting Limited as on the Record Date, 69
(Sixty Nine) equity Share shall be issued and allotied by the Company.

The Company has prepared these Standalone Financial Statements after considering effect in accordance with clause 11 of the Scheme which Tequires
the accounting treatment 1o be carried out as prescribed under applicable accounting standards that is,and in accordance with Ind AS 103, Business

Combination. The consideration payable to the sharcholders of IKIO Lighting Limited, amounting to Rs. 65 97 million has been disclosed ag Shares
Pending Issoance under Equity,

Upon the scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of the Company shall automatically stand enhanced by the authorized share
capital of the Fine Technologies (lndia) Private Limited

Further, the resultant authorized share capital of the Company comprising: (i) 26500000 equity shares of ¥ 10 cach aggregating ¥ 26,50,00,000/-

Computation of net impact of Investment of Fine Technologies {India) Private Limited in the Company:

Particulars Amount
Private A 25333
Less:

Share capital as per books of the Company B 99,41
Security premium as per books of the Company C 137.43
Share Capital to be issued by the Company to IKIO Lighting Limited D (165.38)
Cancellation of Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited Share Capital E 2.40

Adjusted in Capital Reserve (balancing figure) A-(B+HC+HD+E) 179.47




h}  Effects on the financial statements

Amount
Assels
Nop-current asseis
Property. plant and equipment 51.81
{1} Investments 189.24
{i) Other financial assets Ll&
Deferred 1ax assets (net) 1.57
Mon current tax assct (net) 0.23
Other non current assets 1.56
Total non current assets 24557
Current assels
Inventories 138.59
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 138.24
{ir) Cash and cash equivalents 0.66
{1v) Loans 2,60
(iv) Other financial assets 2.57
Oiher current assets 3.64
Total current assets 346.30
Total assets | 591.87
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 2.00
Other equity 215.28
Total equity 217.28
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
{i) Borrowings 129.00
Provisions 7.98
Total non current liabilities 126,98
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 145.66
{ii1) Trade payables
MSME 13.62
Non MSME 33.38
(iv) Other financial liabilitics 16.22
Other current liabilitics 14.53
Provisions 077
Current tax labilities (net) 13.43
Total current liabilities 237.61
Total liabilities 374.59
Total equity and liabilities 591.87

The above have been accounted for, in compliance with Ind AS 103 "Business Combination”.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
All applicable cases where registration of charges or satisfaction is required with Registrar of Companies have been done. No registration or satisfaction is
pending for the year ended March 31, 2024 and vear ended March 31, 2023,
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Details with respect to the Benami Properties:
Mo proceedings have been initinted or pending against the entity under the Benami Transactions (prohibition) Act, 1988 for the perod ended March 31, 2024

Undisclosed income

There is no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts, Mo such income i surrendered or disclosed s income during the period in the
tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1061

Details of Crypio Currency or Virtual Currency

Profit or loss on transactions involving Crypto curreney or No transaction during the year
Wirtual Currency

Amount of currency held as at the reporting date Mo trmsaction during the year

[Deposits or ndvanees from any person for the purpose of inding Mo transaction during the year
or investing in Crypto Currency / virtual currency

Wilful Defaulter:
Mo bank or financial institution has declared the company as "wilful defaulter”

Details in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium shall be provided in respect of:

Trnsactions where an entity has provided any advanee, loan, or invested funds to any other No such transaction has taken place during the vear
person (5) or entity) entities, including foreign entitics

Transsctions where an entity has recetved any fund from any person () of entity/ entities, Mo such tmansaction has taken place during the vear
ncluding foreign entity

Relationship with Struck off Companies:
No transaction has boen made with the company struck off under section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or section $60 of Companies Act, 1956 dunng the
period ended March 31, 2024

Complisnece with number of layers of com panies:

Where the company has complied with the number of lavers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of
Lavers) Rules. 2017.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Mimsiry af Corporate Affars (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the exisung standards ander Companies {Indizn Accounting Standards) Rules
as issued from time 1o time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to
the Group

Loan or advances granted to the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related partiess

No loan or advanees in the nature of loans are granted o the promoters, directors, key managerial persons and the related partics (as defined under Companics
Act, 2013, erther severally or jointly with any other person that ane;

u) repayable on demand or
b} without specifying any terms or period of repaymeni

Figures less then Rs. 5000 has been displaved as 0,007,

Previous year's figures have been regrouped ¢ reclassaficd as per the current vear presentation for the purpose of comparability
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